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So our story begins 
• All we ever knew about the Beekman Arm’s 

early past came from one source – Howard 
Morse’s 1908 book, Historic Old 
Rhinebeck, Echo’s of Two Centuries. The 
other history book, Edward Smith’s 1881 
History of Rhinebeck, offers little. 

• All we have ever repeated is Morse’s 
narrative, it’s been taken as fact. It does not 
appear to have ever been questioned or 

• The narrative on the Post Road was equally limited. 

investigated. 



• Morse was a Civil War veteran and a 
highly respected attorney. He also grew 
up in Rhinebeck. Morse spent years and 
years researching his comprehensive [self-
published] book. No footnotes were 
used. 

• Morse did live closer to the time period 
and perhaps had some passed-on 
eyewitness accounts or corroborating 
evidence. 

• We spent two years, but had the   
benefit of his work, historical societies, 
and the internet. 



1905 Samuel Hollyer, Fraunces Tavern 

1908 Edwin Marquardt, Rhinebeck Hotel 

1798 Map, no Dutch gambrel ^ 

< “1769” 

Morse did the very best he could with what he had 

The 

Dec 15, 1769 

Alice Morse Earle, Stagecoach and Tavern Days 



Depression, WWI, The 
creation of the Beekman 
Arms, 

Bicentennial, Greenhouse  

LaForge era 

Winne Era 

Dows/Foster Era 

Violets! 

Civil War 

Dutch/Colonial Period 

Jacque’s Hotel Era 

WWII, Roosevelt 
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Electricity, running water, heat 

The “Old Hotel,” A Full Life 
A constant ebb and flow of success and hard times 

B
ee

km
an

 A
rm

s 
Te

n
an

t 
P

er
io

d
 

Gilded Age 1870-1900 



The Early Settlement  
Traphagen’s, Kiersted's, and Coles’ 



Illustrative map, not definitive 
Next page: Thomas Cole, Mill at Sunset, 1844 

circa mid-1600’s 
 

3rd Largest NY Dutch 
Settlement Esopus  

(Kingston) 

Six  
waterfalls 

Ulster & Salisbury Turnpike 1802 
(aka Ulster & Delaware Turnpike full extent) 
(aka by locals east of Hudson, Sepasco Trail) 

Earliest Native Trails - Colonial Roads 

Native Indian trails 
crisscrossed the region 

These became the early 
colonial roads 

“CT Pioneers Traveled through 
here to their new homes in  
Western NY”  (DAR, 1922) 





 
Bien, Joseph Rudolf  
1895 State Atlas  
From www.davidrumsey.com 

Unlike New England with freeholders of land, New York was divided into large patents 



William Traphagen’s original 281 acres of deeded land from Henry Beekman 

Beekman’s first recorded sale was to Kingston resident William 
Traphagen on May 25, 1705. Beekman sold him a considerable 
stake, 281 acres, bounded by the Landsman Kill and Rhinebeck 
Kill to the west, south and north and by a line later defined as 
running on the east approximately at the angle of Oak Street. 
(Originally: "Beginneth at a furr tree marked wth three notches 
& a Cross by a fall in ye first abovementioned run of water on 
Lantsmans Kill thence Running north north west fourty five 
minutes northerly along ye Lands of Coll Beekman to a White 
Oak tree marked as above fifty five chains.“  

Judge Beekman tallying of Traphagen’s early rents, 1705, Princeton University L:ibrary 

William Beekman 1623–1707 
Judge Henry Beekman 1652–1716 
Colonel Henry Beekman Jr. 1687-1776 
Margaret Beekman Livingston 1724–1800 
Henry Beekman Livingston 1748-1828  



Split in half with his stepson Arie Hendrickse, Arie received in 1710/11 

Upon which he built a “brewhouse” 

1769 Map, Princeton University L:ibrary 



By his 1736 will, he split his land up to his 3 children 
(William Jr., Geesje, and Arent) 

1790 Bogardus mortgage, Book 6, page 97 1790 Bogardus Mortgage, Bk6, p97 DCRD 

Kiersted, 1769,74 



In 1746, Arent swaps land with Henry Beekman Jr. 

So we know when the land around the Beekman Arms was secured from Beekman. 
(Arent passed away later in 1746, no BA on this map, so it seems unlikely he built.) 

1746 Deed, DCRD Bk5, p399 



But this is where it gets difficult- all records are lost 

1746 Deed, Dutchess County Registry of Deeds 

1746 Deed, Beekman’s copy, Princeton University 

c1769 survey map, Princeton University Library 



Mar 1770 Survey, Princeton 
Jul 1770 Deed, Princeton,  Simon Bought 

1810 Cox Map #50, DCRD 



Everardus Bogardus  
1769-1799 



Bogardus was likely involved in the Commodity Trade 

How the Bogardus house may have looked at the center intersection of the busy post road 
(actually painting of the Fairview Inn, Three Mile House on Old Frederick Road. Oil on canvas by Thomas Coke Ruckle. 1814, Maryland Historical Society) 

Never listed as an innkeeper, always as a merchant…and he came from a family of sloop operators 



1787 

Everardus appears to be more of a wholesale merchant than an innkeeper 

1787 Bogardus deed SC19687, NYPL 



On June 19, 1703, the Colonial Assembly passed “AN ACT for the 
Laying out Regulateing Clearing and preserving Publick Comon highways 
thro’out this Colony,” setting out the requirement for a usable road 
north. Among other things, it provided for a highway “to Extend from 
Kings Bridge in the County of West Chester thro’ the same County of 
West Chester[,] Dutchess County and the County of Albany of the 
breadth of Four Rods English Measure at the Least to be Continue and 
remain for ever the Publick Comon General Road and Highway from 
King Bridge aforesaid to the Ferry at Crawlew over against the City of 
Albany.” 

Mapping the Post Road, Erskine 1779, & Colles 1789 

NYSL 1778 

1779 Map, left Erskine Map 93R, NYHS, 1789 Map, right, Colles, davidrumsey.com 



Starr Library Copy 1798 NYS Archives Copy 1798 

HRV Copy 1799 LOC Copy 1800 

1798 Thompson Maps 



1803 Cox overlaid on Beer’s 1867 Map, shows likely Kip and Potter Tavern Locations 

1803 Cox in Princeton University Library. Unlabeled, undated, but an 1804 final copy exists (without these names on it). 1867 Map RHS. 



81 Acres of “BOGARDUS LAND”  

Kingston Rhinebeck Dutchess Co. Parcel Access System tax map 

Tractplotter.com output 
 using 1802 deed inputs 



American Antiquarian Society, Republican Watch-Tower, 5/28/1800 
Above, Bogardus grave behind RDC 



1802 Salisbury Turnpike Map – First to Label the BA as a business (HOTEL) 

DCRD Map #28 



Jacques Hotel & 
The Rhinebeck Hotel 

 1805-1837, 1838-1913 



John Randel’s 1810 map 

Randel’s 22’ map 
Albany Hall of Records 



1855 

1849 

1800-40s, the peak of activity for the stage coach industry 

AAS 



Early Post Road Taverns 

1749 Map, Library of Congress 



View Of The Tavern On The Road  
To King's Bridge Near Fort Washington 1825 
American Antiquarian Society 



First known photograph likely c.1860, said to look like this in 1812 

1907 Elmira Newspaper 

1907, Welles, Reminiscences of Oldest Hotel 
Next page: John Krimmel, 1820, Ballroom Dancing, LOC 



Possibly what was going on inside! 



With the stage and then railroads in the 1850’s, came the salesmen 

Register: LaForge, Ads: RHS 



1874 1874, Tremper Brothers, tie to horse racing at the “Driving Park” 

Ad: MRH, paper: RHS on fultonhistory.org 



By 1875, the third Floor is added, also a new pump appears 

T. Boylan 



Before 1899, Stage to the River/Rail (Garden St & W. Mkt) 

MRH 







Keeping the saloon busy or waiting for stage, undated, turn of century 

MRH 



1907 RG 

1890’s Lake ad 

1907, the “oldest” claim begins (as a Hotel) 

Book: LaForge, ad: RG, Lake Ad: RHS 





1886 Sanborn Map, notable number of Saloons 

Reproduced from maps in NYPL collection 



1912 Sanborn Map, garages start to replace blacksmith shops 



MRH 



The Foster & Dows Era 
1914-1939 



Ad: RG 1/13/17, pictures MRH 



Dows Collection HRH 



Foster/Dows Renovations, 1917 

The Dows Collection, HRH 



From Foster to Winne, endless postcards playing up oldest hotel 



The Dows Collection, HRH 



RHS 



RHS 



MRH 



4/30/1927 RG 

1934 

The Dows Collection, HRH, RG page 
Below L. Winne scrapebook 



Lewis Winne, Hotel manager extraordinaire, later part owner (1930-1949)  

L. Winne scrape book ads/article. Pictures MRH 



May I make a suggestion to you, my neighbors of Rhinebeck? At this 
very historic crossroads of the village we now have the new Post Office, 
the nation-wide famous Beekman Arms Inn, and just beyond it on the 
northwest corner that fine old stone building, so substantially built that it 
will last for all time to come. As time goes on, some of the other 
buildings on the other side of the street and on this side may have to be 
replaced by new buildings. Now, these buildings are substantial enough 
but they are set rather close to the street and represent a style of 
architecture that is not being copied much today, a style that was 
followed by architects for years but one which we now rather smile at as 
we label it Victorian. 
   And so, when replacements are made, I hope that the new buildings 
may be set back by—what shall we say?—not by law but by community 
opinion, set back so that you in Rhinebeck will have what, in effect, will 
be a large open square, admired for its beauty by the many thousands 
who pass this way.  FDR May 1, 1939 FDR Library 



MRH 



BA (likely 40’s or 50’s) 



Charles LaForge, longest tenured Innkeeper – 44 years  

Added greenhouse 1982, large kitchen, leased out rest. last 10 yrs 



Current Owners, George & Phebe Banta, since 2002 



Rhinebeck Community Project 
 
 
 
 
 

Re-build the old Beekman Mill 
-Fund-raise/grant write to raise $2m & services 

-Will donate all book proceeds to the cause! 

Leave you with this idea: 

Mt. Vernon gristmill 


